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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

RESOURCES CONNECTION, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except par value per share)

August 24, May 25,
2024 2024
(Unaudited)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 89,625 $ 108,892
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowances of $2,640 and $2,755 as of August 24, 2024 and May 25, 2024, respectively 106,469 108,515
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 7,242 6,388
Assets held for sale - 8,909
Income taxes receivable 8,132 7,551
Total current assets 211,468 240,755
Goodwill 219,965 216,579
Intangible assets, net 23,808 9,573
Property and equipment, net 3,507 3,763
Operating lease right-of-use assets 23,398 11,899
Deferred tax assets 11,798 11,312
Other non-current assets 18,925 17,033
Total assets $ 512,869 $ 510,914
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses $ 14,019 $ 15,223
Accrued salaries and related obligations 44,302 41,999
Operating lease liabilities, current 5,540 4,735
Other current liabilities 10,728 10,476
Total current liabilities 74,589 72,433
Long-term debt - -
Operating lease liabilities, non-current 19,334 8,586
Deferred tax liabilities 9,311 8,680
Other non-current liabilities 2,420 2,452
Total liabilities 105,654 92,151
Commitments and contingencies (see Note 13)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 5,000 shares authorized; zero shares issued and outstanding - -
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 70,000 shares authorized; 36,540 and 36,194 shares issued, and 33,472 and 33,556 shares
outstanding as of August 24, 2024 and May 25, 2024, respectively 366 363
Additional paid-in capital 392,885 389,720
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (16,882) (17,713)
Retained earnings 78,048 88,595
Treasury stock at cost, 3,068 and 2,638 shares as of August 24, 2024 and May 25, 2024, respectively (47,202) (42,202)
Total stockholders’ equity 407,215 418,763
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 512,869 $ 510,914

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Revenue
Direct cost of services
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Goodwill impairment
Amortization expense
Depreciation expense
(Loss) income from operations
Interest income, net
Other income
(Loss) income before income tax expense
Income tax expense
Net (loss) income

Net (loss) income per common share:

Basic

Diluted

RESOURCES CONNECTION, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

(Unaudited)

Weighted-average number of common and common equivalent shares outstanding:

Basic

Diluted

Cash dividends declared per common share

Three Months Ended
August 24, August 26,
2024 2023

136,935 $ 170,169
86,948 103,168
49,987 67,001
48,910 59,932
3,855 -
1,485 1,314
540 877
(4,803) 4,878
(148) (312)
(2) (2)
(4,653) 5,192
1,054 2,075
(5,707) $ 3,117
0.17) $ 0.09
0.17) $ 0.09
33,407 33,412
33,407 34,010
0.14 $ 0.14

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RESOURCES CONNECTION, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended
August 24, August 26,
2024 2023
Net (loss) income $ (5,707) $ 3,117
Foreign currency translation adjustment gain, net of tax 831 342
Total comprehensive (loss) income $ (4.876) § 3,459

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RESOURCES CONNECTION, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balances at May 25, 2024
Stock-based compensation expense

Issuance of common stock purchased under Employee Stock
Purchase Plan

Issuance of restricted stock

Issuance of common stock upon vesting of restricted stock
units, net of shares withheld to cover taxes

Cash dividends declared (80.14 per share)

Dividend equivalents on equity awards

Repurchase of common stock

Currency translation adjustment

Net loss for the three months ended August 24, 2024

Balances at August 24, 2024

Balances at May 27, 2023
Exercise of stock options
Stock-based compensation expense

Issuance of common stock purchased under Employee Stock
Purchase Plan

Issuance of restricted stock

Cash dividends declared ($0.14 per share)

Dividend equivalents on equity awards

Currency translation adjustment

Net income for the three months ended August 26, 2023

Balances at August 26, 2023

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

For the Three Months Ended August 24, 2024

Accumulated
Common Stock AdP:;:ii?i::al Treasury Stock Com;()):elllf:nsive Retained Stoc{?]toallders
Shares Amount Capital Shares Amount Loss Earnings Equity
36,194 $ 363§ 389,720 2,638 $ (42,202) $ (17,713) 88,595 § 418,763
- - 1,599 - - - - 1,599
229 2 2,008 - - - - 2,010
5 - - - - - - -
112 1 (595) - - = = (594)
- - - - - - (4,687) (4,687)
= = 153 = = = (153) =
- - - 430 (5,000) - (5,000)
= = = = = 831 = 831
- - - - - - (5,707) (5,707)
36,540 $ 366 $ 392,885 3,068 $ (47,202) $ (16,882) 78,048 § 407,215
For the Three Months Ended August 26, 2023
Accumulated
Common Stock A‘lj’:ifii:)i:al Treasury Stock Com](J)rtehheernsive Retained Stoc};‘;l?llders
Shares Amount Capital Shares Amount Loss Earnings Equity
35,545 § 355§ 378,657 2,070 $ (34,850) $ (17,290) 87,648 § 414,520
22 1 341 - - - - 342
- - 2,466 - - - - 2,466
198 2 2,772 - - - - 2,774
- - - 2) 39 - 39) -
- - - - - - (4,720) (4,720)
- - 145 - - - (145) -
- - - - - 342 - 342
- - - - - - 3,117 3,117
35,765 § 358§ 384,381 2,068 $ (34,811) $ (16,948) 85,861 § 418,841

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RESOURCES CONNECTION, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net (loss) income

(Unaudited)

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense
Stock-based compensation expense
Goodwill impairment
(Gain) loss on sale of assets
Adjustment to allowances
Deferred income taxes
Other, net
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisition:
Trade accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Income taxes
Other assets
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses
Accrued salaries and related obligations
Other liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Net proceeds from sale of assets
Acquisition of Reference Point, net of cash acquired
Investments in property and equipment and internal-use software
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Repurchase of common stock
Payment of cash dividends

Net cash used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Supplemental cash flow disclosures
Income taxes paid, net
Interest paid
Non-cash investing and financing activities
Dividends declared, not paid

Three Months Ended
August 24, August 26,
2024

$ (5,707) $ 3,117
2,025 2,191

1,561 2,552

3,855 -

(3,394) 12

(60) 179
438 (498)

44 44

4,278 5,730
(193) (627)

(951) 735
(1,879) (3,029)

(1,285) 1,166
441 (13,949)

518 163
(309) (2,214)

12,309 -

(22,967) -

(266) (548)

(10,924) (548)

- 350

2,010 2,774

(5,000) -

(4,695) (4,681)

(7,685) (1,557)

(349) 130

(19,267) (4,189)

108,892 116,784

$ 89,625 § 112,595
$ 1,343 $ 1,620
$ 88 $ 88
$ 4,687 $ 4,720

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RESOURCES CONNECTION, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

1. Description of the Company and its Business

Resources Connection, Inc. (the “Company”), a Delaware corporation, was incorporated on November 16, 1998. The Company’s operating entities
provide services primarily under the name Resources Global Professionals (“RGP”). RGP is a global consulting firm focused on delivering consulting services that
power clients’ operational needs and change initiatives utilizing a combination of bench and on-demand, expert and diverse talent. As a next-generation human
capital partner for its clients, the Company specializes in co-delivery of enterprise initiatives typically precipitated by business transformation, strategic
transactions or regulatory change. The Company’s principal markets of operations are North America, Europe and Asia Pacific.

The Company’s fiscal year consists of 52 or 53 weeks, ending on the Saturday in May closest to May 31. The first quarters of fiscal 2025 and 2024 each
consisted of 13 weeks. The Company’s fiscal year 2025 will consist of 53 weeks.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited financial statements of the Company as of and for the three months ended August 24, 2024 and August 26, 2023 have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and the instructions to Form
10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. These financial statements include all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) the Company’s
management considers necessary for a fair presentation of its financial position at such dates and the operating results and cash flows for those periods. The
financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Although management believes these estimates and assumptions are adequate, actual results could differ from the estimates
and assumptions used.

The fiscal 2024 year-end balance sheet data was derived from audited consolidated financial statements, and certain information and note disclosures
normally included in annual financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) rules or regulations; however, the Company believes the disclosures made are adequate to make the information presented not misleading.

The unaudited consolidated results of operations for the interim periods presented are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations to be expected
for the full fiscal year. These interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
May 25, 2024, which are included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Fiscal Year 2024 Form 10-K”) filed with the SEC on July 22, 2024 (File No.
0-32113).

A complete listing of the Company’s significant accounting policies is discussed in Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Fiscal Year 2024 Form 10-K.

Reporting Segments

During the first quarter of fiscal 2025, the Chief Executive Officer, the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM?”), announced a decision to
reorganize the Company’s business by forming multiple discrete operational business units. To align the new operating model and financial reporting, the
Company made management organizational changes and implemented new reporting modules and processes to provide discrete information to manage the
business. During the first quarter of fiscal 2025, the Company completed its assessment of the Company's operating segments and has identified the following
newly defined operating segments:
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¢ On-Demand Talent — operating under the On-Demand by RGP™ brand, this segment provides businesses with a go-to source for bringing in experts
when they need them.

+  Consulting — operating under the Veracity by RGP™ brand, this segment drives transformation across people, processes and technology across domain
areas including finance, technology and digital, risk and compliance and supply chain transformation.

* Europe & Asia Pacific — is a geographically defined segment that offers both on-demand and consulting services (excluding the digital consulting
business, which is included in our Consulting segment) to clients throughout Europe and Asia Pacific.

«  Outsourced Services — operating under the Countsy by RGP™ brand, this segment offers finance, accounting and HR services provided to startups,
spinouts and scale-up enterprises, utilizing a technology platform and fractional team.

»  Sitrick — a crisis communications and public relations firm which operates under the Sitrick brand, providing corporate, financial, transactional and crisis
communication and management services.

Each of these segments reports through a separate segment manager to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer, who are
collectively designated as the CODMSs for segment reporting purposes. The Company's reportable segments are comprised of On-Demand Talent, Consulting,
Europe & Asia Pacific, and Outsourced Services. Sitrick does not individually meet the quantitative thresholds to qualify as a reportable segment. Therefore,
Sitrick is disclosed under the “All Other” segment. Each of these segments represents a reporting unit for the purposes of assessing goodwill for impairment.

On July 1, 2024, the Company acquired Reference Point LLC (“Reference Point”). See Note 4 — Acquisition for further discussion about the Company’s
acquisition of Reference Point. Reference Point is reported within the Consulting Services operating segment from the date of acquisition.

All prior year periods presented were recast to reflect the impact of the preceding segment changes. See Note 14 — Segment Information and Enterprise
Reporting for further information.

Per Share Information

The Company presents both basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing net (loss) income by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is based upon the weighted-average number of common shares and potentially dilutive
common shares outstanding during the period. Potentially dilutive shares of common stock include the assumed exercise of outstanding in-the-money stock
options, assumed issuance of common stock under the Company's 2019 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended (“ESPP”), assumed release of outstanding
restricted stock awards (“RSAs”), restricted stock units (“RSUs”) and performance stock units (“PSUs”) using the treasury stock method. However, potentially
dilutive shares of common stock are excluded from the computation in periods in which they have an anti-dilutive effect.

During the three months ended August 24, 2024, the Company incurred a net loss, and as a result potentially dilutive common shares issuable from the
assumed exercise of stock options and the assumed release of shares of common stock under the outstanding ESPP, RSAs, RSUs, and PSUs awards were not
included in the diluted shares used to calculate net loss per share, as their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.
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The following table summarizes the calculation of net (loss) income per common share for the three months ended August 24, 2024 and August 26, 2023
(in thousands, except per share amounts):

Three Months Ended
August 24, August 26,
2024 2023

Net (loss) income $ (5,707) § 3,117
Weighted-average shares outstanding:

Basic weighted-average shares 33,407 33,412

Effect of dilutive shares:

Potentially dilutive stock options — 162

Potentially dilutive employee stock purchase plan — 10

Potentially dilutive restricted stock awards — 52

Potentially dilutive restricted stock units — 181

Potentially dilutive performance stock units — 193

Diluted weighted-average shares outstanding 33,407 34,010
Net (loss) income per common share:

Basic $ 0.17) $ 0.09

Diluted $ 0.17) $ 0.09

The following table sets forth the potentially dilutive shares excluded from the computation of the diluted net loss per share because their effect was anti-
dilutive (in thousands):

Three Months Ended

August 24, August 26,
2024 2023
Stock options 1,978 1,382
Employee stock purchase plan 10 —
Restricted stock awards 97 ==
Restricted stock units 294 6
Performance stock units — —
Total 2,379 1,388
Financial Instruments

The fair value of the Company’s financial instruments reflects the amounts that the Company estimates it will receive in connection with the sale of an
asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (exit price).

The Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable, and accounts payable and other accrued expenses
are carried at cost, which approximates their fair value because of the short-term maturity of these instruments.

Goodwill Impairment

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis in the fourth quarter and more frequently if indicators of potential impairment exist. Impairment
testing is conducted at the reporting unit level. Application of the goodwill impairment test requires judgments, including estimation of future cash flows, which is
dependent on internal forecasts, estimation of the long-term rate of growth for the Company’s business, and determination of the Company’s weighted average cost
of capital. Under Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 350, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other, the

10
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qualitative assessment requires the consideration of factors such as recent market transactions, macroeconomic conditions, and changes in projected future cash
flows or planned revenue or earnings of the reporting unit as potential indicators when determining the need for a quantitative assessment of impairment. As part
of the segment change, the Company completed a quantitative assessment of impairment as of May 26, 2024.

Under the quantitative analysis, the estimated fair value of goodwill is determined by using a combination of a market approach and an income approach.
The market approach estimates fair value by applying revenue and EBITDA multiples to each reporting unit’s operating performance. The multiples are derived
from guideline public companies with similar operating and investment characteristics to our reporting units, and are evaluated and adjusted, if needed, based on
specific characteristics of the reporting units relative to the selected guideline companies. The market approach requires us to make a series of assumptions that
involve significant judgment, such as the selection of comparable companies and the evaluation of the multiples. The income approach estimates fair value based
on our estimated future cash flows of each reporting unit, discounted by an estimated weighted-average cost of capital that reflects the relevant risks associated
with each reporting unit and the time value of money. The income approach also requires us to make a series of assumptions that involve significant judgment,
such as discount rates, revenue projections and Adjusted EBITDA margin projections. We estimate our discount rates on a blended rate of return considering both
debt and equity for comparable guideline public companies. We forecast our revenue and Adjusted EBITDA margin based on historical experience and internal
forecasts about future performance.

The Company determined the fair value of its new operating segments and reporting units based on an income approach, using a series of assumptions
that involve significant judgment, such as discount rates, revenue projections and Adjusted EBITDA margin projections. Significant estimates used to determine
fair value included the weighted-average cost of capital and financial projections. While we believe that the assumptions underlying our quantitative assessment
are reasonable, these assumptions could have a significant impact on whether a non-cash impairment charge is recognized and the magnitude of such charge. The
results of an impairment analysis are as of a point in time. There is no assurance that the actual future earnings or cash flows of our RGP reporting unit will be
consistent with our projections.

As a result of the quantitative impairment test, the Company concluded that the carrying amount of the Europe and Asia Pacific segment exceeded its fair
value, which resulted in an impairment charge of $3.9 million on the goodwill associated with the Europe and Asia Pacific segment on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations for the three months ended August 24, 2024. See Note 6 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets for further information.

Capitalized Hosting Arrangements

The capitalized hosting arrangements costs are primarily related to the implementation of a cloud-based enterprise resource planning system and talent
acquisition and management systems. Such costs include third party implementation costs and costs associated with internal resources directly involved in the
implementation. Capitalized hosting arrangements are stated at historical cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the expected
term of the hosting arrangement, taking into consideration several other factors such as, but not limited to, options to extend the hosting arrangement or options to
terminate the hosting arrangement. The amortization of capitalized implementation costs for hosting arrangements will commence when the systems are ready for
their intended use and will be presented as operating expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations consistent with the presentation for expensing the fees
for the associated hosting arrangement.

As of August 24, 2024, the capitalized costs related to hosting arrangements incurred during the application development stage were $18.1 million. These
capitalized hosting arrangements are included in other non-current assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, and the Company incurred $0.1 million of
amortization expense during the three months ended August 24, 2024 related to these arrangements. There were $16.1 million of capitalized costs recorded as of
May 25, 2024 and less than $0.1 million of costs were amortized during the three months ended August 26, 2023 related to hosting arrangements.

Share Repurchases

The Company’s stock repurchase program authorizes the Company to repurchase shares at the discretion of the Company’s senior executives based on
numerous factors, including, without limitation, share price and other market conditions, the Company’s ongoing capital allocation planning, the levels of cash and
debt balances, and other demands for cash. The Company records the shares repurchased as treasury stock based on the amount paid to repurchase its shares.
Direct costs incurred to acquire treasury stock are treated like stock issue costs and added to the cost of the treasury stock.

11
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See Note 10 — Stockholders’ Equity for further information on the repurchase of shares of common stock under the stock repurchase program.

Reclassifications
Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to current period presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on previously reported
totals for assets, liabilities, stockholders’ equity, cash flows or net income.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

No recent accounting pronouncements or changes in accounting pronouncements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, the America
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the SEC have a material significance, or have potential material significance, to the Company’s financial statements
since those discussed in the Company’s Fiscal Year 2024 Form 10-K.

3. Revenue Recognition
The timing of revenue recognition, billings and cash collections affects the recognition of trade accounts receivable, contract assets and contract liabilities.

Contract assets represent the Company’s rights to consideration for completed performance under the contract (i.e., unbilled receivables), in which the
Company has transferred control of the product or services before there is an unconditional right to payment. Contract assets were $27.4 million and $29.3 million
as of August 24, 2024 and May 25, 2024, respectively, which were included in trade accounts receivable in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Contract liabilities represent deferred revenue when cash is received in advance of performance of services and are presented in other current liabilities in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Contract liabilities were $4.0 million and $3.5 million as of August 24, 2024 and May 25, 2024, respectively. Revenue
recognized during the three months ended August 24, 2024 that was included in deferred revenue as of May 25, 2024 was $0.6 million. Revenue recognized during
the three months ended August 26, 2023 that was included in deferred revenue as of May 27, 2023 was $1.6 million.

4. Acquisition

Acquisition of Reference Point
On July 1, 2024, the Company entered into an Amended and Restated Membership Interest Purchase Agreement (the “Reference Point MIPA”) with
Reference Point LLC (“Reference Point”) and the holder of all the outstanding membership interests of Reference Point LLC (collectively, “Seller”), in which the
Company acquired 100% of the membership interests of Reference Point. Reference Point is a strategy, management, and technology consulting firm serving the
financial services sector across four areas of focus: Strategy & Management, Risk & Regulatory Compliance, Digital & Technology and Data & Analytics. The
Company paid initial cash consideration of $23.0 million (net of $0.2 million cash acquired). The initial consideration is subject to final post-closing adjustments
for the final working capital, cash, indebtedness and transaction expenses as described in the Reference Point MIPA.

Results of operations of Reference Point are included within the Consulting Services operating segment in the Consolidated Statements of Operations
from the date of acquisition. Reference Point contributed $2.7 million of revenue and $0.5 million of operating income to the Consolidated Statements of
Operations during the three months ended August 24, 2024. During the same period, the Company incurred $1.3 million in acquisition costs that were recorded in
selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

In accordance with ASC 805 Business Combinations, the Company made an initial provisional allocation of the purchase price for Reference Point based
on the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, with the residual amount recorded as goodwill. The Company’s provisional purchase price
allocation considered a number of factors, including the valuation of identifiable intangible assets. In connection with this acquisition, the Company provisionally
recorded total intangible assets consisting of $14.4 million for customer relationships (to be amortized over 11 to 13 years), $0.7 million related to a non-compete
agreement (to be amortized over 5 years) and $0.6 million for trade name (to be amortized over 1 year). The Company also provisionally recorded $6.7 million of
goodwill. The goodwill is attributable primarily to expected synergies and the assembled workforce of Reference Point.

12
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The following table summarizes the consideration for the acquisition of Reference Point and the provisional amounts of the identified assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at the acquisition date:

Fair value of consideration transferred (in thousands):
Cash $ 23,215

Recognized provisional amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed (in thousands):

Cash and cash equivalents $ 248
Trade accounts receivable (1) 2,013
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 52
Intangible assets 15,720
Property and equipment 28

Other non-current assets 63

Total identifiable assets 18,124
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 47
Accrued salaries and related obligations 988
Other liabilities 527

Total liabilities assumed 1,562
Net identifiable assets acquired 16,562
Goodwill 6,653
Net assets acquired $ 23,215

(1) As of the acquisition date, the gross contractual amount of accounts receivable of $2.0 million was expected to be fully collected.

The purchase price allocation described above is preliminary with respect to the valuation of intangible assets acquired, goodwill, and tax related matters.
A final determination of fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed relating to the acquisition could differ from the preliminary purchase price allocation.
The Company expects to finalize the valuation and complete the purchase price allocation as soon as practicable, but no later than one year from the acquisition
date.

The weighted-average useful lives of Reference Point's trade name, non-compete agreement and customer relationships are approximately 1 year, 5 years
and 12 years, respectively. The weighted-average useful life of all Reference Point's intangible assets is 11.26 years.

5. Assets Held for Sale

As of February 24, 2024, the Company determined the asset groups associated with its corporate office in Irvine, California met the criteria of held for
sale, since the Company intended to complete the sale of these assets within the twelve months following the end of the third quarter of fiscal 2024. Accordingly,
the related assets classified as held for sale are separately presented in our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of May 25, 2024. In addition, such assets are presented
at the lower of carrying value or fair value less any costs to sell. The Company concluded that the offering price of the disposal assets was an approximate fair
value, which exceeded the carrying value of the related assets as of May 25, 2024. As such, the assets held for sale are reported at their carrying value.
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The following table presents information related to the major classes of assets that were classified as held for sale in our Consolidated Balance Sheets
associated with the Company's Irvine corporate office as described above (in thousands):

Assets Held for Sale As of

Irvine Office Building May 25, 2024

Building and land $ 14,309

Leasehold improvements 321

Furniture and fixtures 1,565

Total assets held for sale, gross 16,195

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (7,286)

Total assets held for sale, net $ 8,909
Sale of Irvine Building

The Company entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement dated May 15, 2024, and as amended as of May 20, 2024, with a third-party buyer for the sale
of its Irvine building for a total purchase price of $13.0 million. During the three months ended August 24, 2024, the Company completed the sale of its Irvine
building to the City of Irvine for total consideration of $13.0 million. The transaction closed on August 15, 2024, and resulted in a gain of $3.4 million. The sale
does not constitute a discontinued operation. As such, the gain has been recorded within selling, general, and administrative expenses in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

As described in Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, the Company changed its segment reporting effective during the first quarter of the
fiscal 2025, and reallocated goodwill to the new reporting units on the relative fair value basis. Concurrent with the segment change, the Company completed a
goodwill impairment assessment and concluded that the carrying value of the Europe and Asia Pacific segment, also a reporting unit, was in excess of its fair value
and as such recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $3.9 million on the Consolidated Statements of Operations during the three months ended August 24, 2024.

The following table summarizes the activity in the Company’s goodwill balance. The balance as of May 25, 2024 was recast to reflect the impact of the
preceding segment change (in thousands):

On-Demand Europe & Asia Outsourced
Talent Consulting Pacific Services All Other Total

Balance as of May 25, 2024 $ 69,154 $ 90,478 $ 28,349 $ 28,598 $ — 3 216,579
Acquisition (see Note 4) — 6,653 — — — 6,653
Goodwill Impairment — — (3,8595) — $ = (3,855)
Impact of foreign currency exchange rate

changes — 588 — — 588
Balance as of August 24, 2024 $ 69,154 $ 97,131 $ 25,082 $ 28,598 §$ — 3 219,965
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The following table presents details of the Company’s intangible assets, estimated lives and related accumulated amortization (in thousands):

As of August 24, 2024 As of May 25, 2024
Estimated Gross Net Gross Net
Useful Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Life Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Customer contracts and

relationships 7 - 12 years $ 39,500 $ (17,854) $ 21,646 $ 25,100 $ (16,858) $ 8,242
Computer software 1-3.5 years 7,870 (6,901) 969 7,870 (6,539) 1,331
Trade names 1 year 600 (102) 498 - - -
Non-Compete Agreements S years 720 (25) 695 - - -
Total $ 48,690 $ (24,882) $ 23,808 $ 32,970 $ (23,397) $ 9,573

The Company recorded amortization expense of $1.5 million and $1.3 million for the three months ended August 24, 2024 and August 26, 2023,
respectively.

The following table presents future estimated amortization expense based on existing intangible assets (in thousands):

Fiscal Years:

2025 (remaining nine months) $ 4,399
2026 4,186
2027 1,936
2028 1,632
2029 and thereafter 11,655
Total $ 23,808

Actual future estimated amortization expense could differ from these estimated amounts as a result of future acquisitions, dispositions, impairments, and
other factors or changes.

7. Leases

The Company currently leases office space, vehicles and certain equipment under operating leases through fiscal 2035. Lease cost components included
within selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
August 24, 2024 August 26, 2023
Operating lease cost $ 1,727 $ 1,864
Short-term lease cost 79 57
Variable lease cost 381 373
Sublease income (1) (179) (129)
Total lease cost $ 2,008 $ 2,165

(1) Sublease income does not include rental income received from owned property, which is not material.

On August 1, 2024, the Company entered into a lease agreement for an office space in Irvine, set to commence on November 1, 2024 and expire on
July 31, 2032. This lease is expected to replace the recently sold Irvine office building. The average annual rent for the lease term will be $0.7 million. In
December 20, 2023, the Company entered into a lease agreement for an office space in New York that commenced on July 1, 2024 with an expiration date of July
31, 2034. The annual fixed rent for the first five years of $1.2 million and $1.3 million of the last five years.

15



Table of Contents

The weighted-average lease term and weighted-average discount rate for operating leases as of August 24, 2024 and May 25, 2024 are presented in the
following table:

As of As of
August 24, 2024 May 25, 2024
Weighted-average remaining lease term 6.3 years 3.5 years
Weighted-average discount rate 5.07% 4.37%

Cash flow and other noncash information related to operating leases is included in the following table (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
August 24, 2024 August 26, 2023
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of operating lease liabilities $ 1,692 $ 2,209
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease obligations $ 13,085 $ 983

Future maturities of operating lease liabilities as of August 24, 2024 are presented in the following table (in thousands):

Operating Lease

Fiscal Years: Maturity
2025 (remaining nine months) $ 5,079
2026 5,404
2027 4,104
2028 3,726
2029 2,913
Thereafter 8,240
Total future lease payments 29,466
Less: interest (4,592)
Present value of operating lease liabilities $ 24,874

8. Long-Term Debt

On November 12, 2021, the Company and Resources Connection LLC, as borrowers, and all of the Company’s other domestic subsidiaries, as guarantors,
entered into a credit agreement with the lenders that are party thereto and Bank of America, N.A. as administrative agent for the lenders (the “Credit Agreement”),
and concurrently terminated the then existing credit facility. The Credit Agreement provides for a $175.0 million senior secured revolving loan (the “Credit
Facility”), which includes a $10.0 million sublimit for the issuance of standby letters of credit and a swingline sublimit of $20.0 million. The Credit Facility also
includes an option to increase the amount of the revolving loan up to an additional $75.0 million, subject to the terms of the Credit Agreement. The Credit Facility
matures on November 12, 2026. The obligations under the Credit Facility are secured by substantially all assets of the Company, Resources Connection LLC and
all of the Company’s domestic subsidiaries.

Future borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest at a rate per annum of either, at the Company’s election, (i) Term SOFR (as defined in the Credit
Agreement) plus a margin ranging from 1.25% to 2.00% or (ii) the Base Rate (as defined in the Credit Agreement), plus a margin of 0.25% to 1.00% with the
applicable margin depending on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio. In addition, the Company pays an unused commitment fee on the average daily unused
portion of the Credit Facility, which ranges from 0.20% to 0.30% depending on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio.

The Credit Agreement contains both affirmative and negative covenants. Covenants include, but are not limited to, limitations on the Company’s and its
subsidiaries’ ability to incur liens, incur additional indebtedness, make certain restricted payments, merge or consolidate and make dispositions of assets. In
addition, the Credit Agreement requires the
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Company to comply with financial covenants including limitations on the Company’s total funded debt, minimum interest coverage ratio and maximum leverage
ratio. The Company was compliant with all financial covenants under the Credit Agreement as of August 24, 2024.

As of August 24, 2024 and May 25, 2024, the Company had no debt outstanding under the Credit Facility. In addition, the Company had $1.5 million and
$1.4 million of outstanding letters of credit issued under the Credit Facility as of August 24, 2024 and May 25, 2024, respectively. As of August 24, 2024, there
was $173.5 million remaining capacity under the Credit Facility.

On November 2, 2022, Resources Global Enterprise Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), as borrower, and the
Company, as guarantor, entered into a RMB 13.4 million ($1.8 million based on the prevailing exchange rate on November 2, 2022) revolving credit facility with
Bank of America, N.A. (Beijing) as the lender (the “Beijing Revolver”). The Beijing Revolver bears interest at loan prime rate plus 0.80%. Interest incurred on
borrowings will be payable monthly in arrears. As of August 24, 2024, the Company had no debt outstanding under the Beijing Revolver and RMB 13.4 million
($1.9 million based on the prevailing exchange rate on August 24, 2024) in available credit. The availability of proceeds under the Beijing Revolver is at the
lender's absolute discretion and may be terminated at any time by the lender, with or without prior notice to the borrower.

9. Income Taxes

For the three months ended August 24, 2024 and August 26, 2023, the Company’s income tax expense was $1.1 million, an effective tax rate of (22.7%),
and $2.1 million, an effective tax rate of 40.0%, respectively. The income tax expense in the first quarter of fiscal 2025 measured against a pretax loss resulted in
the negative effective tax rate. Despite the consolidated pretax loss in the first quarter of fiscal 2025, the Company recorded an income tax expense related to
foreign income tax expense on international profits, along with rate impacting non-deductible items including tax adjustments associated with goodwill
impairment, changes in valuation allowance and stock-based compensation.

The Company operates in an international environment. Accordingly, the consolidated effective tax rate is a composite rate reflecting the earnings (losses)
in various locations and the applicable tax rates in those jurisdictions. Fluctuations in the consolidated effective tax rate year over year are due to the changes in the
mix of operating income and losses amongst the various jurisdictions in which the Company operates.

For the three months ended August 24, 2024 and August 26, 2023, the Company recognized a tax benefit of approximately $0.5 million and $0.2 million,
respectively, associated with the exercise of nonqualified stock options, vesting of RSAs, RSUs, and disqualifying dispositions by employees of shares acquired
under the ESPP.

The Company’s total liability for unrecognized gross tax benefits, including accrued interest and penalties, was $1.1 million and $1.0 million as of
August 24, 2024 and May 25, 2024, which, if ultimately recognized, would impact the effective tax rate in future periods. Management believes that there is a
possibility that unrecognized gross tax benefits of $1.1 million are expected to be recognized within the next 12 months due to the expiration of a statute of
limitation. The unrecognized tax benefits are included in other long-term liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. None of the unrecognized tax benefits are
considered short-term liabilities as the Company does not anticipate any cash payments to settle the liability within the next 12 months.

10. Stockholders’ Equity
Stock Repurchase Program

The Company’s board of directors has previously approved a stock repurchase program authorizing the repurchase, at the discretion of the Company’s
senior executives, of the Company’s common stock for a designated aggregate dollar limit. The current program was authorized in July 2015 (the “July 2015
Program”) and set an aggregate dollar limit not to exceed $150 million. Subject to the aggregate dollar limit, the currently authorized stock repurchase program
does not have an expiration date. Repurchases under the program may take place in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions and may be made
pursuant to a Rule 10b5-1 plan. During the three months ended August 24, 2024, the Company purchased 430,284 shares of its common stock on the open market
at an average price of $11.62 per share, for an aggregate total purchase price of approximately $5.0 million. As of August 24, 2024, approximately $37.2 million
remained available for future repurchases of the Company’s common stock under the July 2015 Program. During the three months ended August 26, 2023, the
Company made no repurchases of its common stock.
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Quarterly Dividend

Subject to approval each quarter by its board of directors, the Company pays a regular dividend. On July 24, 2024, the board of directors declared a
regular quarterly dividend of $0.14 per share of the Company’s common stock. The dividend was paid on September 20, 2024 to stockholders of record at the
close of business on August 23, 2024. As of both August 24, 2024 and May 25, 2024, $4.7 million was accrued and recorded in other current liabilities in the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets for dividends declared but not yet paid. Continuation of the quarterly dividend is at the discretion of the board of
directors and depends upon the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, general business condition, contractual restrictions
contained in the Credit Facility and other agreements, and other factors deemed relevant by the board of directors.

11. Restructuring Activities

During fiscal 2024, the Company initiated a cost reduction plan, including a reduction in force (the “United States (U.S.) Restructuring Plan”) intended to
reduce costs and streamline operations. The U.S. Restructuring Plan resulted in a reduction of force of approximately 12% of the Company’s U.S. management and
administrative workforce. The Company incurred employee termination costs associated with the U.S. Restructuring Plan, and were recorded in selling, general
and administrative expenses in its Consolidated Statements of Operations. The U.S. Restructuring Plan was substantially completed as of the year ended May 25,
2024. Restructuring adjustments were less than $0.1 million for the three months ended August 24, 2024 and zero for three months ended August 26, 2023. The
restructuring liability was zero and $0.8 million as of August 24, 2024 and May 25, 2024, respectively.

12. Stock-Based Compensation Plans
General

The Company’s stockholders approved the Resources Connection, Inc. 2020 Performance Incentive Plan (the “2020 Plan”) on October 22, 2020, which
replaced and succeeded in its entirety the Resources Connection, Inc. 2014 Performance Incentive Plan (the “2014 Plan”). Executive officers and certain
employees, as well as non-employee directors of the Company and certain consultants and advisors are eligible to participate in the 2020 Plan. The maximum
number of shares of the Company’s common stock that may be issued or transferred pursuant to awards under the 2020 Plan equals: (1) 1,797,440 (which
represents the number of shares that were available for additional award grant purposes under the 2014 Plan immediately prior to the termination of the authority
to grant new awards under the 2014 Plan as of October 22, 2020), plus (2) the number of shares subject to stock options granted under the 2014 Plan or the
Resources Connection, Inc. 2004 Performance Incentive Plan (together with the 2014 Plan, the “Prior Plans”) and outstanding as of October 22, 2020 which
expire, or for any reason are cancelled or terminated, after that date without being exercised, plus (3) the number of any shares subject to RSAs and RSUs granted
under the Prior Plans that are outstanding and unvested as of October 22, 2020 which are forfeited, terminated, cancelled, or otherwise reacquired after that date
without having become vested.

Awards under the 2020 Plan may include, but are not limited to, stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, performance stock, stock units,
stock bonuses and other forms of awards granted or denominated in shares of common stock or units of common stock, as well as certain cash bonus awards.
Historically, the Company has granted RSAs and RSUs under the 2020 Plan that typically vest in equal annual installments, and PSUs under the 2020 Plan that
vest upon the achievement of certain Company-wide performance targets at the end of the defined performance period. Stock option grants typically terminate ten
years from the date of grant. Vesting periods for RSAs, RSUs and stock option awards range from three to four years. The performance periods for the PSUs are
three years. As of August 24, 2024, there were 763,359 shares available for further award grants under the 2020 Plan.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Stock-based compensation expense included in selling, general and administrative expenses was $1.6 million and $2.6 million for the three months ended
August 24, 2024 and August 26, 2023, respectively. These amounts consisted of stock-based compensation expense related to employee stock options, RSAs,
RSUs and PSUs under the 2020 Plan and Prior Plans, employee stock purchases made via the ESPP, and stock units credited under the Directors Deferred
Compensation Plan. The Company recognized a tax benefit of $0.4 million and $0.5 million associated with such stock-based compensation expense during the
three months ended August 24, 2024 and August 26, 2023, respectively.

The Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense on time-vesting equity awards ratably over the applicable vesting period based on the grant
date fair value, net of estimated forfeitures. Expense related to the liability-classified awards reflects the change in fair value during the reporting period. The
number of performance stock units
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earned at the end of the applicable performance period may equal, exceed or be less than the targeted number of shares depending on whether the performance
criteria are met, surpassed or not met. During each reporting period, the Company uses the latest forecasted results to estimate the number of shares to be issued at
the end of the performance period. Any resulting changes to stock compensation expense are adjusted in the period in which the change in estimates occur.

Stock Options
The following table summarizes the stock option activity for the three months ended August 24, 2024 (in thousands, except weighted-average exercise
price):
Weighted-Average
Number of Options Exercise Price

Awards outstanding at May 25, 2024 2,185 $ 16.36
Exercised -8 -
Forfeited -8 -
Expired (248) $ 12.79
Awards outstanding at August 24, 2024 1,937 § 16.93
Exercisable at August 24, 2024 1,937 ¢ 16.93
Vested and expected to vest at August 24, 2024 (1) 1,937 ¢ 16.93

(1) The options expected to vest are the result of applying the pre-vesting forfeiture rate assumptions to options not yet vested. As of August 24, 2024, all
outstanding options have vested.

As of August 24, 2024, there was no unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested and outstanding employee stock options.
Employee Stock Purchase Plan

On October 20, 2022, the Company’s stockholders approved an amendment and restatement of the 2019 ESPP that increased the number of shares
authorized for issuance under the ESPP by 1,500,000, resulting in a maximum number of shares of the Company’s common stock authorized for issuance under
the ESPP of 3,325,000 shares.

The Company’s ESPP allows qualified employees (as defined in the ESPP) to purchase designated shares of the Company’s common stock at a price
equal to 85% of the lesser of the fair market value of common stock at the beginning or end of each semi-annual stock purchase period. The Company issued
229,341 and 198,150 shares of common stock pursuant to the ESPP during the three months ended August 24, 2024 and August 26, 2023, respectively. There were
1,093,905 shares of common stock available for issuance under the ESPP as of August 24, 2024.

Restricted Stock Awards

The following table summarizes the activities for the unvested RSAs for the three months ended August 24, 2024 (in thousands, except weighted-average
grant-date fair value):

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair

Shares Value
Unvested at May 25, 2024 223 § 15.84
Granted 59 11.31
Vested (1 $ 15.76
Forfeited - $ -
Unvested as of August 24, 2024 227§ 15.74
Expected to vest as of August 24, 2024 210 g 15.78
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As of August 24, 2024, there was $2.1 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to unvested RSAs. The cost is expected to be recognized
over a weighted-average period of 1.46 years.

Restricted Stock Units

The Company may issue either equity-classified RSUs, which are awards granted to employees under the 2020 Plan that settle in shares of the Company’s
common stock, or liability-classified RSUs, which are awards credited to board of director members under the Directors Deferred Compensation Plan that settle in
cash.

The following table summarizes the activities for the unvested RSUs, including both equity- and liability-classified RSUs, for the three months ended
August 24, 2024 (in thousands, except weighted-average grant-date fair value):

Equity-Classified RSUs Liability-Classified RSUs Total RSUs
Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair Grant-Date Fair Grant-Date Fair
Shares Value Shares Value Shares Value

Unvested at May 25, 2024 615 $ 14.91 48 $ 15.64 663 $ 14.96
Granted (/) 659 $ 10.63 2 8 10.70 661 $ 10.63
Vested -3 - 2 $ 10.70 2 $ 10.70
Forfeited - $ - - % - - $ -
Unvested as of August 24, 2024 1,274 g 12.66 48 3 15.64 1,322 $ 12.77
Expected to vest as of August 24, 2024 1,219 ¢ 12.57 48 3 15.64 1,267 ' $ 12.69

(1) Dividend equivalents are included in the granted shares.

As of August 24, 2024, there was $12.0 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to unvested equity-classified RSUs. The cost is expected
to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.58 years.

As of August 24, 2024, there was $0.6 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to unvested liability-classified RSUs. The cost is expected
to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.69 years.

Performance Stock Units

The Company has issued PSUs to certain members of management and other select employees. The total number of shares that would vest under the
PSUs will be determined at the end of the applicable three-year performance period based on the Company’s achievement of certain revenue and Adjusted
EBITDA (as defined below in Note 14 — Segment Information and Enterprise Reporting) percentage targets over the applicable performance period. The total
number of shares that may be earned for these awards based on performance over the performance period ranges from zero to 150% of the target number of shares.

The following table summarizes the activities for the unvested PSUs for the three months ended August 24, 2024 (in thousands, except weighted-average
grant-date fair value):

Weighted-Average

Shares (1) Grant-Date Fair Value
Unvested at May 25, 2024 621 $ 16.15
Granted (2) 16 $ 18.40
Vested (164) $ 18.40
Forfeited -8 -
Unvested as of August 24, 2024 473§ 15.44
Expected to vest as of August 24, 2024 405 ¢ 15.63
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(1) Shares are presented in this table at the stated target, which represents the base number of shares that would vest over the applicable performance period.
Actual shares that vest may be zero to 150% of the target based on the achievement of the specific company-wide performance targets.

(2) Dividend equivalents are included in the granted shares.
As of August 24, 2024, there was no unrecognized compensation costs related to unvested PSUs.
13. Commitments and Contingencies
Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in certain legal matters arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, none of such matters, if
disposed of unfavorably, would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, cash flows or results of operations.

14. Segment Information and Enterprise Reporting

The tables below reflect the operating results of the Company’s segments consistent with the management and performance measurement system utilized
by the Company. During the first quarter of fiscal 2025, the Company reorganized its business segments to better align with changes in its internal operating model
and financial reporting, which is used for performance assessment and resource allocation by the CODMs. All prior year periods presented were recast to reflect
the impact of the preceding segment changes. See Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for further discussion about the Company’s operating and
reportable segments.

Performance measurement is based on segment Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as net income before amortization expense, depreciation
expense, interest and income taxes plus or minus stock-based compensation expense, technology transformation costs, acquisition costs, gain on sale of assets, and
restructuring costs. Adjusted EBITDA at the segment level excludes certain shared corporate administrative costs that are not practical to allocate. The Company’s
CODMs do not evaluate segments using asset information.

The following table discloses the Company’s revenue and Adjusted EBITDA by segment for both periods presented (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
August 24, August 26,
2024 2023

Revenue:

On-Demand Talent $ 52,473 $ 77,974

Consulting 55,025 56,845

Europe & Asia Pacific 17,983 23,267

Outsourced Services 9,491 9,418

All Other 1,963 2,665
Total consolidated revenue $ 136,935 § 170,169
Adjusted EBITDA:

On-Demand Talent $ 2,559 $ 8,557

Consulting 7,753 8,529

Europe & Asia Pacific 227 1,704

Outsourced Services 1,394 1,548

All Other (467) 71

Unallocated items (1) (9,146) (8,863)
Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA (2) $ 2,320 $ 11,546
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(1) Unallocated items are generally comprised of unallocated corporate administrative costs, including management and board compensation, corporate support

function costs and other general corporate costs that are not allocated to segments.

(2) A reconciliation of the Company s net income to Adjusted EBITDA on a consolidated basis is presented below.

The table below represents a reconciliation of the Company’s net (loss) income to Adjusted EBITDA for both periods presented (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
August 24, August 26,
2024 2023
Net (loss) income $ (5,707) $ 3,117
Adjustments:
Amortization expense 1,485 1,314
Depreciation expense 540 877
Interest income, net (148) (312)
Income tax expense 1,054 2,075
EBITDA (2,776) 7,071
Stock-based compensation expense 1,561 2,552
Technology transformation costs (1) 1,858 1,923
Acquisition costs (2) 1,289 —
Goodwill impairment (3) 3,855 —
Gain on sale of assets (4) (3,420) —
Restructuring adjustments (47) —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 2,320 $ 11,546

(1) Technology transformation costs represent costs included in net income related to the Company’s initiative to upgrade its technology platform globally,
including a cloud-based enterprise resource planning system and talent acquisition and management systems. Such costs primarily include hosting and certain

other software licensing costs, third-party consulting fees and costs associated with dedicated internal resources that are not capitalized.

(2) Acquisition costs primarily represent one-time costs included in net income related to the Company's business acquisition, which include fees paid to the
Company's broker and other professional services firms. See Note 4 — Acquisition in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

(3) Goodwill impairment charge recognized during the three months ended August 24, 2024 was related to the Europe Asia Pacific segment.

(4) The Company completed the sale of its Irvine office building on August 15, 2024.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition, results of operations, and liquidity and capital resources for the three months ended
August 24, 2024 should be read in conjunction with the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements and related notes and with our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended May 25, 2024 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). This discussion and analysis contains ‘“forward-
looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”). These statements relate to expectations concerning matters that are not historical facts. For example, statements discussing, among
other things, expected costs and liabilities, business strategies, growth strategies and initiatives, acquisition strategies, future revenues and future performance, are
forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements may be identified by words such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “can,” “continue,” “could,”
“estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “potential,” “predicts,” “remain,” “should” or “will” or the negative of these terms or other comparable
terminology. In this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, such statements include statements regarding our growth, operational and strategic plans.

” ELTS

9 9 ” EEINTS

These statements and all phases of our operations are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause our actual
results, levels of activity, performance or achievements and those of our industry to differ materially from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking
statements. Risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the following: risks related to an economic downturn or deterioration of general and ongoing
macroeconomic conditions, the highly competitive nature of the market for professional services, risks related to the loss of a significant number of our
consultants, or an inability to attract and retain new consultants, the possible impact on our business from the loss of the services of one or more key members of
our senior management, risks related to potential significant increases in wages or payroll-related costs, our ability to secure new projects from clients, our inability
to adapt to a changing competitive landscape including for technological advancements, our ability to achieve or maintain a suitable pay/bill ratio, our ability to
compete effectively in the competitive bidding process, risks related to unfavorable provisions in our contracts which may permit our clients to, among other
things, terminate the contracts partially or completely at any time prior to completion, potential adverse effects to our and our clients’ liquidity and financial
performances from bank failures or other events affecting financial institutions, risks arising from epidemic diseases or pandemics, our ability to realize the level
of benefit that we expect from our restructuring and reorganizational initiatives, risks that our digital expansion and technology transformation efforts may not be
successful, our ability to build an efficient support structure as our business continues to grow and transform, our ability to grow our business, manage our growth
or sustain our current business, our ability to serve clients internationally, additional operational challenges from our international activities including due to social,
political, regulatory, legal and economic risks in the countries and regions in which we operate, possible disruption of our business from our past and future
acquisitions, the possibility that our recent rebranding efforts may not be successful, our potential inability to adequately protect our intellectual property rights,
risks that our computer hardware and software and telecommunications systems are damaged, breached or interrupted, risks related to the failure to comply with
data privacy laws and regulations and the adverse effect it may have on our reputation, results of operations or financial condition, our ability to comply with
governmental, regulatory and legal requirements and company policies, the possible legal liability for damages resulting from the performance of projects by our
consultants or for our clients’ mistreatment of our personnel, risks arising from changes in applicable tax laws or adverse results in tax audits or interpretations, the
possible adverse effect on our business model from the reclassification of our independent contractors by foreign tax and regulatory authorities, the possible
difficulty for a third party to acquire us and resulting depression of our stock price, the operating and financial restrictions from our credit facility, risks related to
the variable rate of interest in our credit facility, the possibility that we are unable to or elect not to pay our quarterly dividend payment, and other factors and
uncertainties as are identified in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 25, 2024 and our other public filings made with the SEC
(File No. 0-32113). Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also affect our business or operating
results. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements included herein, which speak only as of the date of this filing. We do
not intend, and undertake no obligation, to update the forward-looking statements in this filing to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this filing or to
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, unless required by law to do so.

. ” 1)

References in this filing to “Resources Global Professionals,” the “Company, us,” and “our” refer to Resources Connection, Inc. and its

subsidiaries.

we,
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Overview

Resources Global Professionals (“RGP,” “we" or “us”) is a global consulting firm based in Irvine, California (with offices worldwide) focused on
delivering consulting execution services that power clients’ operational needs and change initiatives utilizing a combination of bench and on-demand, expert and
diverse talent. As a next-generation human capital partner for our clients, we specialize in leadership and co-delivery of enterprise initiatives typically precipitated
by business transformation, strategic transactions or regulatory change. Our engagements are designed to leverage human connection and collaboration to deliver
practical solutions and more impactful results that power our clients’, employees’ and partners’ success.

We attract top-caliber professionals with in-demand skill sets who seek a workplace environment characterized by choice and control, collaboration and
human connection. The trends in today’s marketplace favor flexibility and agility as businesses confront transformation pressures and skilled labor shortages even
in the face of protracted economic uncertainty. Our client engagement and talent delivery model offer speed and agility, strongly positioning us to help clients
transform their businesses and workforce. Our model is especially relevant at a time where cost reduction initiatives drive an enhanced reliance on a flexible
workforce to execute transformational projects.

We are laser-focused on driving long-term growth in our business by seizing favorable macro shifts in workforce strategies and preferences, building an
efficient and scalable operating model, and maintaining a distinctive culture and approach to professional services. Our enterprise initiatives in recent years include
refining the operating model for sales, talent and delivery to be more client-centric, cultivating a more robust performance culture by aligning incentives to
business performance, enhancing our consulting capabilities in digital transformation to align with market demand, improving operating leverage through pricing
and a more efficient cost structure, and driving growth through strategic acquisitions.

In May 2024, we reorganized our business into three distinct engagement models to create greater clarity for all stakeholders and to better serve our
clients. By offering On-Demand Talent, Consulting, and Outsourced Services within one enterprise, we can deliver what clients want today — flexibility, value and
integrated service solutions. We believe our focus and execution around this new operating model will serve as the foundation for growth ahead. As further
described under Operating Results of Segments below, in connection with this reorganization, management completed an assessment of our operating segments
and concluded that we now have five reportable segments comprising each of these engagement models (On-Demand Talent, Consulting, and Outsourced
Services), Europe & Asia Pacific and All Other (which includes our Sitrick operating segment).

On July 1, 2024, the Company acquired Reference Point LLC (“Reference Point”). See Note 4 — Acquisition for further discussion about the Company’s
acquisition of Reference Point included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further information. Reference Point is reported within the
Consulting Services operating segment from the date of acquisition.

Fiscal 2025 Strategic Focus Areas
Building upon the foundation we established through fiscal 2024, we will continue to execute the following enterprise growth drivers in fiscal 2025:

*  Evolve and execute under our new business segments
*  Launch and activate new brand identity; and
*  Enhance digital and Al capabilities.

Evolve and execute under our new business segments — Our first area of focus for fiscal 2025 is to evolve our business by focusing on three core
engagement models: On-Demand Talent, Consulting, and Outsourced services. Our On-Demand Talent business is branded “On-Demand by RGP™,” our
Consulting business is called “Veracity by RGP™” and our outsourced services business is Countsy®. We expect this shift to reduce market and buyer confusion,
enhance our ability to focus on our core strengths and areas of expertise and provide greater optionality for our buying set to engage with RGP. This new
organizational structure will enable us to better serve our clients along their transformation journey by providing targeted skill sets, high value consulting services
and outsourced delivery under a single umbrella. Our approach combines flexibility, best of breed technology, and human-centered design with functional and
subject matter expertise. This year, we will clarify and operationalize these models to unlock the cross selling of our diversified capabilities throughout our blue
chip, loyal and longstanding client base. Part of the growth plan for our consulting business includes leveraging On-Demand by RGP™ for greater financial
flexibility and better skill set alignment. Our growing consulting
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capability provides us with deeper visibility into our clients’ transformation agendas to drive greater opportunity for our on-demand execution capabilities. In our
outsourced services business, we have expanded Countsy’s total addressable market beyond the start-up ecosystem to serve the finance, accounting and human
resources needs surrounding spin-outs and carve-outs. Europe and Asia will continue to operate in the geographic regions as one business segment, serving our
clients with consulting capabilities and On-Demand talent. Evolving our business through this reorganization ensures that we are well positioned to execute and
succeed as the macro environment recovers.

Launch and activate new brand — Our second focus area for this fiscal year is to launch and activate a new brand identity and brand architecture in the
marketplace. The central objective behind our brand refresh is to clarify to stakeholders what we do, who we serve, when to call us, and the impact we deliver.
Under this new architecture, RGP will serve as an enterprise parent brand, representing a family of brands that are comprised of On-Demand by RGP™, Veracity
by RGP™ and Countsy by RGP™. We have refreshed our digital properties to reflect our new brand identity and align them with our new brand architecture as
part of this effort. We believe these changes will result in clarity around our full suite of capabilities and create greater understanding of the value we can bring to
our clients across a broader spectrum.

Enhance digital and Al capabilities — Our third focus area for fiscal 2025 is continuing to expand and enhance our technology, digital and data
capabilities across all business units. The increased adoption of digital tools, remote work styles, generative artificial intelligence, and globalization is driving new
areas of need within our client base. We are actively adding skilled on-demand and consulting professionals in areas such as technology migration, cybersecurity,
data modernization and data privacy, and user experience to proactively meet these evolving client needs. Under the Veracity by RGP™ consulting business we are
bringing together our digital transformation business and the deep functional expertise within RGP’s legacy Project Consulting Services (PCS) group. We believe
this combined offering will uniquely position us to offer our clients integrated end-to-end consulting solutions in the digital arena. With the addition of Reference
Point, we are also now able to bring tailored technology and data modernization offerings to our many financial services industry clients.

Market Trends and Uncertainties

On a macro level, uncertain macroeconomic conditions including ambiguity around interest rates, softening labor markets and fluctuations in currency
exchange rates have created significant uncertainty in the global economy, volatility in the capital markets and recessionary pressures. We expect these conditions
will continue in fiscal 2025. While we are not able to fully predict the potential impact, we continue to see more caution in professional services spending within
our client base. If these conditions persist and a prolonged economic downturn or recession develops, it could result in further decline in billable hours and
negatively impact our bill rates which would adversely affect our financial results and operating cash flows.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments. Actual results may differ
from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. Our significant accounting policies are discussed in Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Fiscal Year 2024 Form 10-K, and in Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

There have been no material changes in our critical accounting policies, or in the estimates and assumptions underlying those policies, from those
described under the heading “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” in Item 7 of Part II of our Fiscal Year 2024 Form 10-K.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We use certain non-GAAP financial measures to assess our financial and operating performance that are not defined by or calculated in accordance with
GAAP. A non-GAAP financial measure is defined as a numerical measure of a company’s financial performance that (i) excludes amounts, or is subject to
adjustments that have the effect of excluding amounts, that are included in the comparable measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations; or (ii) includes amounts, or is subject to adjustments that have the effect of including amounts, that are excluded from the
comparable GAAP measure so calculated and presented.
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Our primary non-GAAP financial measures are listed below and reflect how we evaluate our operating results:

*  Same-day constant currency revenue is adjusted for the following items:

o Currency impact. In order to remove the impact of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, we calculate same-day constant currency
revenue, which represents the outcome that would have resulted had exchange rates in the current period been the same as those in effect in the
comparable prior period.

o Business days impact. In order to remove the fluctuations caused by comparable periods having a different number of business days, we
calculate same-day revenue as current period revenue (adjusted for currency impact) divided by the number of business days in the current
period, multiplied by the number of business days in the comparable prior period. The number of business days in each respective period is
provided in the “Number of Business Days” section in the table below.

» EBITDA is calculated as net (loss) income before amortization expense, depreciation expense, interest and income taxes.

* Adjusted EBITDA is calculated as EBITDA plus or minus stock-based compensation expense, technology transformation costs, acquisition costs,
goodwill impairment, gain on sale of assets and restructuring adjustments. We also present herein Adjusted EBITDA at the segment level as a
measure used to assess the performance of our segments. Segment Adjusted EBITDA excludes certain shared corporate administrative costs that are
not practical to allocate. See Note 14 — Segment Information and Enterprise Reporting in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in

Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further information.

*  Adjusted EBITDA Margin is calculated by dividing Adjusted EBITDA by revenue.
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Same-Day Constant Currency Revenue

Same-day constant currency revenue assists management in evaluating revenue trends on a more comparable and consistent basis. We believe this
measure also provides more clarity to our investors in evaluating our core operating performance and facilitates a comparison of such performance from period to
period. The following table presents a reconciliation of same-day constant currency revenue, a non-GAAP financial measure, to revenue as reported in the

Consolidated Statements of Operations, the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure, by geography (in thousands, except number of business days).

Adjusted Revenue by Segment

Three Months Ended
August 24, 2024 August 26, 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Aié?{gg)e d Currency impact Busilll:l;s:c(:ays S;:;‘:ég:; :::}1:;?1? As reported (GAAP)
On-Demand Talent $ 52,473 $ 154 $ - 8 52,627 $ 77,974
Consulting 55,025 160 (18) 55,167 56,845
Europe and Asia Pacific 17,983 440 12 18,435 23,267
Outsourced Services 9,491 - - 9,491 9,418
All Other 1,963 = = 1,963 2,665
Total Consolidated $ 1 36,935 $ 754 $ (6) $ 137,683 $ 1 70, 169
Three Months Ended
Number of Business Days August 24, 2024 August 26, 2023
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
On-Demand Talent (1) 63 63
Consulting (1) 63 63
Europe & Asia (2) 64 64
Outsourced Services (1) 63 63
All Other (1) 63 63

(1) This represents the number of business days in the U.S.

(2) The business days in international regions represent the weighted-average number of business days.
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EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin assist management in assessing our core operating performance. We also believe these
measures provide investors with a useful perspective on underlying business results and trends and facilitate a comparison of our performance from period to
period. The following table presents EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin for the periods indicated and includes a reconciliation of such
measures to net (loss) income and net (loss) income margin, the most directly comparable GAAP financial measures (in thousands, except percentages):

Three Months Ended

August 24, % of August 26, % of
2024 Revenue 2023 Revenue
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Net (loss) income $ (5,707) “42%) $ 3,117 1.8 %
Adjustments:
Amortization expense 1,485 1.1 % 1,314 0.8 %
Depreciation expense 540 0.4 % 877 0.5 %
Interest income, net (148) (0.1 %) (312) (0.2 %)
Income tax expense 1,054 0.8 % 2,075 1.3%
EBITDA (2,776) (2.0 %) 7,071 4.2 %
Stock-based compensation expense 1,561 1.1% 2,552 1.5%
Technology transformation costs (1) 1,858 1.4 % 1,923 1.1%
Acquisition costs (2) 1,289 0.9 % - -
Goodwill Impairment (3) 3,855 2.8% - -
Gain on sale of assets (4) (3,420) (2.5%) - -
Restructuring adjustments 47) - - -
Adjusted EBITDA $ 2,320 1.7% § 11,546 6.8 %

(1) Technology transformation costs represent costs included in net income related to our initiative to upgrade our technology platform globally, including a
cloud-based enterprise resource planning system and talent acquisition and management systems. Such costs primarily include hosting and certain other
software licensing costs, third-party consulting fees and costs associated with dedicated internal resources that are not capitalized.

(2) Acquisition costs primarily represent costs included in net income related to our business acquisition. These costs include transaction bonuses, retention

bonus accruals, and fees paid to the Company's broker, legal counsel, and other professional services firms. See Note 4 — Acquisition in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further discussion about this acquisition.

(3) Goodwill impairment charge recognized during the three months ended August 24, 2024 was related to the Europe and Asia Pacific segment.

(4) The Company completed the sale of its Irvine office building on August 15, 2024.

Our non-GAAP financial measures are not measurements of financial performance or liquidity under GAAP and should not be considered in isolation or
construed as substitutes for revenue, net income or other measures of financial performance or financial condition prepared in accordance with GAAP for purposes
of analyzing our revenue, profitability or liquidity. Further, a limitation of our non-GAAP financial measures is that they exclude items detailed above that have an
impact on our GAAP reported results. Other companies in our industry may calculate these non-GAAP financial measures differently than we do, limiting their
usefulness as a comparative measure. Because of these limitations, these non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered a substitute but rather considered
in addition to performance measures calculated in accordance with GAAP.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our Consolidated Statements of Operations data for the three months ended August 24, 2024 and August 26, 2023,
respectively. These historical results are not necessarily indicative of future results. Our operating results for the periods indicated are expressed as a percentage of
revenue (in thousands, except percentages).

Three Months Ended
August 24, % of August 26, % of
2024 Revenue (1) 2023 Revenue (1)
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Revenue $ 136,935 100.0% $ 170,169 100.0 %
Direct cost of services 86,948 63.5% 103,168 60.6 %
Gross profit 49,987 36.5 % 67,001 39.4 %
Selling, general and administrative expenses 48,910 357 % 59,932 352 %
Goodwill impairment 3,855 4.4 % - -
Amortization expense 1,485 1.1% 1,314 0.8 %
Depreciation expense 540 0.4 % 877 0.5 %
(Loss) income from operations (4,803) (3.5%) 4,878 2.9 %
Interest income, net (148) (0.1 %) (312) (0.2 %)
Other income 2) - 2) -
(Loss) income before income tax expense (4,653) (3.4 %) 5,192 3.1 %
Income tax expense 1,054 0.8% 2,075 1.3%
Net (loss) income $ (5,707) (42%) $ 3,117 1.8%

(1) The percentage of revenue may not foot due to rounding.

Consolidated Operating Results — Three Months Ended August 24, 2024 Compared to Three Months Ended August 26, 2023

Revenue. Revenue decreased $33.2 million, or 19.5%, to $136.9 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2025 from $170.2 million in the first quarter of fiscal
2024 primarily due to reduced client spending across a majority of our markets, client segments and solution offerings as a result of the persistently challenging
global macroeconomic environment. Gross pipeline improved sequentially during the quarter across the globe, however, the time to close opportunities in the
pipeline continued to be protracted, typical in a tougher macro environment when clients are more hesitant to spend on professional services. Billable hours
decreased by 15.3% and the average bill rate declined by 5.0% (or 4.7% on a constant currency basis) from the prior year quarter. The change in average bill rate
was due to a shift in revenue mix across the globe to regions with lower bill rates. The U.S. and Europe average bill rates increased by 2.3% and 4.6% (or 2.3%
and 4.5% on a constant currency basis) respectively, compared to the prior year as a result of our initiative focused on value-based pricing, while average bill rates
in the Asia Pacific region declined by 3.2% (although increased 0.2% on a constant currency basis). The decline in the average bill rates in the Asia Pacific region
was due to a shift in the revenue mix to countries with a historically lower bill rate.

Direct Cost of Services. Direct cost of services decreased $16.2 million, or 15.7%, to $86.9 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2025 from $103.2 million
for the first quarter of fiscal 2024. The decrease in direct cost of services was primarily attributable to a 15.3% decline in billable hours as a result of reduced client
spending as noted above and a 5.0% (or 3.3% on a constant currency basis) decrease in average pay rate during the first quarter of fiscal 2025 compared to the
prior year quarter.

Direct cost of services as a percentage of revenue was 63.5% for the first quarter of fiscal 2025 compared to 60.6% for the first quarter of fiscal 2024. The
increased percentage compared to the prior year quarter was primarily due less favorable leverage on indirect cost of services as a result of lower revenue, lower
salaried consultants and a 60 basis point increase in the pay/bill ratio. We continue to seek improvement in the overall pay/bill ratio and indirect cost leverage
through strategic pricing, while offering competitive compensation and benefits to our consultants to attract and retain the best talent in the marketplace.
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The number of consultants on assignment at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2025 was 2,570 compared to 2,885 at the end of the first quarter of fiscal
2024.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A”) was $48.9 million, or 35.7% of revenue, for the
first quarter of fiscal 2025 compared to $59.9 million, or 35.2% of revenue, for the first quarter of fiscal 2024. The $11.0 million improvement in SG&A year-
over-year was primarily attributed to a lower management compensation expense of $5.1 million largely attributable to the cost reduction plan (the "U.S.
Restructuring Plan") initiated in October 2023, a $3.4 million gain on the sale of the Irvine office building, a $1.3 million decrease in bonuses and commissions as
a result of lower revenue and profitability achievement compared to incentive compensation targets in the current fiscal year, and a $1.0 million decrease in stock
compensation expense primarily as a result of remeasurement of achievement associated with performance based equity awards. These reductions were partially
offset by $1.3 million of costs related to the acquisition of Reference Point, which closed on July 1, 2024.

Management and administrative headcount was 757 at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2025 and 909 at the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2024.
Management and administrative headcount includes full time equivalent headcount for our seller-doer group, a consulting term for a professional who balances
business development activities with billable work for clients, which is determined by utilization levels achieved by the seller-doers. Any unutilized time is
converted to full time equivalent headcount.

Goodwill Impairment. During the first quarter of fiscal 2025, the Company completed a goodwill impairment analysis as part of its business segment
reorganization. As a result of that analysis, a non-cash impairment charge of $3.9 million was recorded in the Europe and Asia Pacific segment in the first quarter
of fiscal 2025.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense was $1.1 million, reflecting an effective tax rate of (22.7%), for the first quarter of fiscal 2025 compared to
$2.1 million, or an effective tax rate of 40.0%, for the first quarter of fiscal 2024. We record tax expense based upon actual results versus a forecasted tax rate
because of the volatility in our international operations that span numerous tax jurisdictions. The income tax expense in the first quarter of fiscal 2025 measured
against a pretax loss resulted in the negative effective tax rate. Despite the consolidated pretax loss in the first quarter of fiscal 2025, the Company recorded an
income tax expense related to foreign income tax expense on international profits, along with rate impacting non-deductible items including tax adjustments
associated with goodwill impairment, changes in valuation allowance and stock-based compensation.

We recognized a tax benefit of approximately $0.5 million and $0.2 million for the three months ended August 24, 2024 and August 26, 2023,
respectively, associated with the exercise of nonqualified stock options, vesting of restricted stock awards, restricted stock units, and disqualifying dispositions by
employees of shares acquired under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”).

Periodically, we review the components of both book and taxable income to prepare the tax provision. There can be no assurance that our effective tax
rate will remain constant in the future because of the lower benefit from the U.S. statutory rate for losses in certain foreign jurisdictions, the limitation on the
benefit for losses in jurisdictions in which a valuation allowance for operating loss carryforwards has previously been established, and the unpredictability of
timing and the amount of disqualifying dispositions of certain stock options.

Comparability of Quarterly Results. Our quarterly results have fluctuated in the past and we believe they will continue to do so in the future. Certain
factors that could affect our quarterly operating results are described in Part I, Item 1A of our Fiscal Year 2024 Form 10-K and our other public filings made with
the SEC. Due to these and other factors, we believe quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our results of operations may not be meaningful indicators of future
performance.

Operating Results of Segments

During the first quarter of fiscal 2025, the Company reorganized its business segments to better align with changes in its internal operating model and
financial reporting, which is used for performance assessment and resource allocation by the Chief Operating Decision Makers. We identified the following newly
defined operating segments:

+  On-Demand Talent — operating under the On-Demand by RGP™ brand, this segment provides businesses with a go-to source for bringing in experts
when they need them.
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+  Consulting — operating under the Veracity by RGP™ brand, this segment drives transformation across people, processes and technology across
domain areas including finance, technology and digital, risk and compliance and supply chain transformation.

»  Europe & Asia Pacific — is a geographically defined segment that offers both on-demand and consulting services (excluding the digital consulting
business, which is included in our Consulting segment) to clients throughout Europe and Asia Pacific.

*  Outsourced Services — operating under the Countsy by RGP™ brand, this segment offers finance, accounting and HR services provided to startups,
spinouts and scale-up enterprises, utilizing a technology platform and fractional team.

» Sitrick — a crisis communications and public relations firm that operates under the Sitrick brand, providing corporate, financial, transactional and
crisis communication and management services.

Our reportable segments are comprised of On-Demand Talent, Consulting, Outsourced Services, and Europe & Asia Pacific. Sitrick does not individually
meet the quantitative thresholds to qualify as a reportable segment. Therefore, Sitrick is disclosed under the “All Other” Segment. All prior year periods presented
were recast to reflect the impact of the preceding segment changes.

On July 1, 2024, we acquired Reference Point LLC (“Reference Point”), which is reported within the Consulting operating segment from the date of
acquisition.
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The following table presents our current operating results by segment for the three months ended August 24, 2024 and August 26, 2023, respectively (in
thousands, except percentages and average bill rates).

Three Months Ended
August 24, August 26,
2024 % of Revenue (1) 2023 % of Revenue (1)
Adjusted EBITDA: (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
On-Demand Talent $ 2,559 49% $ 8,557 11.0%
Consulting 7,753 14.1% 8,529 15.0%
Europe & Asia Pacific 227 1.3% 1,704 7.3%
Outsourced Services 1,394 14.7% 1,548 16.4%
All Other (467) (23.8 %) 71 2.7%
Unallocated items (2) (9,146) (8,863)
Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA 2,320 1.7% 11,546 6.8%
Adjustments:
Stock-based compensation expense (1,561) (2,552)
Technology transformation costs (3) (1,858) (1,923)
Acquisition costs (4) (1,289)
Goodwill impairment (5) (3,855) —
Gain on sale of assets (6) 3,420
Restructuring adjustments 47
Amortization expense (1,485) (1,314)
Depreciation expense (540) (877)
Interest income, net 148 312
(Loss) income before income tax expense (4,653) 5,192
Income tax expense (1,054) (2,075)
Net (loss) income $ (5,707) $ 3,117

(1) Segment Adjusted EBITDA Margin is calculated by dividing segment Adjusted EBITDA by segment revenue.

(2) Unallocated items are generally comprised of unallocated corporate administrative costs, including management and board compensation, corporate support
function costs and other general corporate costs that are not allocated to segments.

(3) Technology transformation costs represent costs included in net income related to the Company's initiative to upgrade its technology platform globally,
including a cloud-based enterprise resource planning system and talent acquisition and management systems. Such costs primarily include hosting and certain
other software licensing costs, third-party consulting fees and costs associated with dedicated internal resources that are not capitalized.

(4) Acquisition costs primarily represent costs included in net income related to the Company's business acquisition. These costs include transaction bonuses,
retention bonus accruals, and fees paid to the Company's broker, legal counsel, and other professional services firms.

(5) Goodwill impairment charge recognized during the three months ended August 24, 2024 was related to the Europe Asia Pacific segment.

(6) The Company completed the sale of its Irvine office building on August 15, 2024.
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Revenue by Segment

On-Demand Talent — Revenue in the On-Demand segment declined by $25.5 million or 32.7%, to $52.5 million compared to $78.0 million in the prior
year quarter. The decline was primarily due to lower demand across solution areas amongst economic uncertainty, with billable hours decreasing by 30.2%.
Additionally, there was a reduction in average bill rate as a result of the competitive economic environment with a year over year decline of 3.2% (also 3.2% on a
constant currency basis).

Consulting — Revenue in the Consulting segment decreased by $1.8 million or 3.2%, to $55.0 million compared to $56.8 million in the prior year quarter.
The decline was primarily due to the lower demand and a reduction in average bill rate in response to the continued challenging global macroeconomic
environment. Billable hours decreased by 3.4% and the average bill rate declined by 1.5% (or 1.9% on a constant currency basis). Most notably, the Consulting
business saw a decrease year over year in finance and accounting transformation-related projects, as customers delayed starting new projects amongst economic

uncertainty. The decrease in revenue for the segment was partially offset by the addition of revenue from the CloudGo and Reference Point acquisitions, which
were not included in the prior year results.

Europe and Asia Pacific — Revenue in the Europe and Asia Pacific segment declined by $5.3 million or 22.7%, to $18.0 million in the quarter compared
to $23.3 million in the prior year quarter. This segment saw a significant delay in decision making and project starts as clients sorted through their own
organizational challenges amidst economic uncertainty most notably in Europe, which resulted in billable hours decreasing by 8.8% year over year. Asia Pacific is
performing relatively more resiliently than Europe. Pricing competition remained fierce across the region, from the Big 4 firms as well as local boutique firms.
Additionally, with a higher proportion of revenue in Asia Pacific in the first quarter of fiscal 2025, which carries significantly lower average bill rates, the weighted
average bill rate for the Europe and Asia Pacific segment declined by 15.5% (or 12.5% on a constant currency basis) year over year.

Outsourced Services — Revenue in the Outsourced services segment of $9.5 million remained flat compared to the prior year quarter.

All Other — Revenue in the All Other segment declined by $0.7 million or 26.3%, to $2.0 million in the quarter compared to $2.7 million in the prior year
quarter. Demand for crisis communications and public relations services continued to be sluggish. The billable hours decreased by 33.5% partially offset by the
increase in average bill rate by 14.8% (also 14.8% on a constant currency basis).

Adjusted EBITDA by Segment

On-Demand Talent — The On-Demand segment’s Adjusted EBITDA decreased by $6.0 million or 70.1%, to $2.6 million for the first quarter of fiscal
2025, compared to $8.6 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2024. Compared to the prior year quarter, revenue decreased $25.5 million for the first quarter of fiscal
2025, which was partially offset by the decrease in the related cost of services of $14.2 million. Additionally, SG&A costs decreased by $5.3 million for the first
quarter of fiscal 2025 as compared to the first quarter of fiscal 2024 primarily due to decreases in management compensation expense of $2.6 million due to the
reduction in force during fiscal 2024, a $0.8 million decrease in bonuses and commissions as a result of lower revenue and profitability achievement compared to
the incentive targets, and a $2.1 million decrease in all other general and administration expenses.

Consulting — The Consulting segment’s Adjusted EBITDA decreased by $0.8 million or 9.1%, to $7.8 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2025,
compared to $8.5 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2024. Compared to the prior year quarter, revenue decreased $1.8 million and the related cost of services
increased by $0.7 million. Additionally, SG&A costs decreased by $1.8 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2025 as compared to the first quarter of fiscal 2024
primarily due to the decreases in management compensation expense and bonus and commission expense.

Europe & Asia Pacific — The Europe & Asia Pacific segment’s Adjusted EBITDA decreased by $1.5 million or 86.7%, to $0.2 million for the first
quarter of fiscal 2025, compared to $1.7 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2024. Compared to the prior year quarter, revenue decreased $5.3 million, which was
partially offset by the decrease in the related cost of services of $3.1 million. Additionally, SG&A costs decreased by $0.7 million for the first quarter of fiscal
2025 as compared to the first quarter of fiscal 2024 primarily due to the decreases in management compensation expense and bonus and commission expense.
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Outsourced Services — The Outsourced Services segment’s Adjusted EBITDA declined slightly by $0.2 million to $1.4 million in the first quarter of
fiscal 2025. This decline was primarily driven by less favorable leverage on indirect cost of services relative to revenue.

All Other — The All Other segment's Adjusted EBITDA declined by $0.5 million or 757.7%, to $(0.5) million for the first quarter of fiscal 2025 compared
to $0.1 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2024 due to lower revenue performance.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash provided by operating activities, our $175.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility (as discussed further
below) and historically, to a lesser extent, stock option exercises and ESPP purchases. During the three months ended August 24, 2024, we generated negative cash
flow from operations. However, on an annual basis, we have generated positive cash flows from operations since inception. Our ability to generate positive cash
flows from operations in the future will depend, at least in part, on global economic conditions and our ability to remain resilient during periods of deteriorating
macroeconomic conditions and any economic downturns. As of August 24, 2024, we had $89.6 million of cash and cash equivalents, including $44.9 million held
in international operations.

On November 12, 2021, we and Resources Connection LLC, as borrowers, and all of our domestic subsidiaries, as guarantors, entered into a credit
agreement with the lenders that are party thereto and Bank of America, N.A. as administrative agent for the lenders (the “Credit Agreement”). The Credit
Agreement provides for a $175.0 million senior secured revolving loan (the “Credit Facility”), which includes a $10.0 million sublimit for the issuance of standby
letters of credit and a swingline sublimit of $20.0 million. The Credit Facility also includes an option to increase the amount of the revolving loan up to an
additional $75.0 million, subject to the terms of the Credit Agreement. The Credit Facility matures on November 12, 2026. The obligations under the Credit
Facility are secured by substantially all of our assets, and assets of Resources Connection LLC and all of our domestic subsidiaries.

Future borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest at a rate per annum of either, at our election, (i) Term SOFR (as defined in the Credit Agreement)
plus a margin ranging from 1.25% to 2.00% or (ii) the Base Rate (as defined in the Credit Agreement), plus a margin of 0.25% to 1.00% with the applicable
margin depending on our consolidated leverage ratio. In addition, we pay an unused commitment fee on the average daily unused portion of the Credit Facility,
which ranges from 0.20% to 0.30% depending upon our consolidated leverage ratio. As of August 24, 2024, we had no debt outstanding under the Credit Facility
and $173.5 million remaining capacity under the Credit Facility.

The Credit Facility is available for working capital and general corporate purposes, including potential acquisitions, dividend distribution and stock
repurchases. Additional information regarding the Credit Facility is included in Note 8 — Long-Term Debt in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Part I, Item I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

On November 2, 2022, Resources Global Enterprise Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd, (our wholly owned subsidiary), as borrower, and we, as guarantor,
entered into a RMB 13.4 million ($1.8 million based on the prevailing exchange rate on November 2, 2022) revolving credit facility with Bank of America, N.A.
(Beijing) as the lender (the “Beijing Revolver”). The Beijing Revolver bears interest at a loan prime rate plus 0.80%. Interest incurred on borrowings will be
payable monthly in arrears. As of August 24, 2024, we had no debt outstanding under the Beijing Revolver.

In addition to cash needs for ongoing business operations, from time to time, we have strategic initiatives that could generate significant additional cash
requirements. Our initiative to upgrade our technology platform, as described in “Fiscal 2025 Strategic Focus Areas” above, requires significant investments over
multiple years. Such costs primarily include software licensing fees, third-party implementation and consulting fees, incremental costs associated with additional
internal resources needed on the project and other costs in areas including change management and training. The actual amount of investment and the timing will
depend on a number of variables, including progress made on the implementation. As of August 24, 2024, we capitalized $18.1 million related to the technology
platform initiative; in addition, we recorded $1.9 million of expenses in the first quarter of fiscal 2025 relating to these investments. At the end of the first quarter
of fiscal 2025, the remaining investments required for this multi-year initiative is estimated to be in the range of $11.0 million to $16.0 million. We expect the
majority of the investment will take place in fiscal 2025. In addition to our technology transformation initiative, we expect to continue to invest in digital pathways
to enhance the experience and touchpoints with our end users, including current and prospective employees (consultants and management employees) and clients.
Such efforts will require additional cash outlay and could further elevate our capital expenditures in the near term. We believe our current cash, ongoing cash flows
from our operations and funding available under our Credit Facility will provide sufficient funds for these initiatives. As of August 24, 2024, we have non-
cancellable purchase obligations
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totaling $11.1 million, which primarily consists of payments pursuant to the licensing arrangements that we have entered into in connection with the technology
platform initiative: $4.6 million due during fiscal 2025; $3.4 million due during fiscal 2026; $2.1 million due during fiscal 2027; $1.0 million due during fiscal
2028; and zero due thereafter.

In addition, we pay a regular quarterly dividend to our stockholders, subject to approval each quarter by our board of directors. Most recently, on
September 20, 2024 we paid a dividend of $0.14 per share of our common stock to stockholders of record at the close of business on August 23, 2024.
Continuation of the quarterly dividend is at the discretion of the board of directors and depends upon our financial condition, results of operations, capital
requirements, general business condition, contractual restrictions contained in the Credit Facility and other agreements, and other factors deemed relevant by our
board of directors.

We entered into a Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 27, 2024, and as amended and restated as of June 30, 2024 (the
“Reference Point MIPA”) with Reference Point LLC (“Reference Point”) and the sole member of Reference Point, pursuant to which we acquired 100% of the
membership interests of Reference Point. We paid an initial cash consideration of $23.0 million (net of $0.2 million cash acquired). See Note 4 — Acquisition in the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

As described under “Market Trends and Uncertainties” above, uncertain macroeconomic conditions and ambiguity around interest rates have created
significant uncertainty in the global economy, volatility in the capital markets and recessionary pressures, which have adversely impacted, and may continue to
adversely impact, our financial results, operating cash flows, and liquidity needs. If we are required to raise additional capital or incur additional indebtedness for
our operations or to invest in our business, we can provide no assurances that we would be able to do so on acceptable terms or at all. Our ongoing operations and
growth strategy may require us to continue to make investments in critical markets and further expand our internal technology and digital capabilities. In addition,
we may consider making additional strategic acquisitions or initiating additional restructuring initiatives, which could require significant liquidity and adversely
impact our financial results due to higher cost of borrowings. We believe that our current cash, ongoing cash flows from our operations and funding available
under our Credit Facility will be adequate to meet our working capital and capital expenditure needs for at least the next 12 months.

Beyond the next 12 months, if we require additional capital resources to grow our business, either organically or through acquisitions, we may seek to sell
additional equity securities, increase the use of our Credit Facility, expand the size of our Credit Facility or raise additional debt. In addition, if we decide to make
additional share repurchases, we may fund these through existing cash balances or the use of our Credit Facility. The sale of additional equity securities or certain
forms of debt financing could result in additional dilution to our stockholders. Our ability to secure additional financing in the future, if needed, will depend on
several factors. These include our future profitability and the overall condition of the credit markets. Notwithstanding these considerations, we expect to meet our
long-term liquidity needs with cash flows from operations and financing arrangements.

Other than as described herein, there have been no material changes to our material cash requirements, including commitments for capital expenditures,
described under the heading “Liquidity and Capital Resources” in Item 7 of Part II of our Fiscal Year 2024 Form 10-K.

Operating Activities

Operating activities for the first three months of fiscal 2025 used cash of $0.3 million compared to $2.2 million for the first three months of fiscal 2024.
The cash used in operations for the first three months of fiscal 2025 was due to a net loss of $5.7 million, which was partially offset by non-cash adjustments of
$4.5 million and net favorable changes in operating assets and liabilities of $0.9 million. These net favorable changes in operating assets and liabilities were driven
by a $4.3 million decrease in trade accounts receivable, a $0.4 million increase in accrued salaries and related obligations, mainly due to the timing of our pay
cycle, and a $0.5 million increase in other liabilities. Offsetting these favorable changes were a $1.9 million increase in other assets largely related to the
investments in our technology implementation, a $1.3 million decrease in accounts payable and other accrued expenses, and a $1.0 million increase in prepaid
Income taxes.

In the first three months of fiscal 2024, cash used in operations resulted from net income of $3.1 million and non-cash adjustments of $4.5 million.
Additionally, net unfavorable changes in operating assets and liabilities totaled $9.8 million, primarily consisting of a $13.9 million decrease in accrued salaries
and related obligations, mainly due to the timing of our pay cycle and the payout of the annual incentive compensation during the first three months of fiscal 2024,
a $3.0 million increase in other assets primarily due to the capitalized implementation costs for hosting arrangements, and a $0.6 million increase in prepaid
expenses and other current assets, partially offset by a $5.7 million decrease in trade
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accounts receivable, a $1.2 million increase in accounts payable and other accrued expenses, and a $0.8 million increase in income taxes payable and other
liabilities.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $10.9 million for the first three months of fiscal 2025 compared to $0.5 million for the first three months of fiscal
2024. Net cash used in investing activities for the first three months of fiscal 2025 was primarily related to $23.0 million of net cash used towards the acquisition
of Reference Point, partially offset by the $12.3 million net proceed from the sale of the Irvine office building. Net cash used in investing activities in the first three
months of fiscal 2024 was primarily related to the development of internal-use software and acquisition of property and equipment.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities totaled $7.7 million in the first three months of fiscal 2025 compared to $1.6 million in the first three months of fiscal
2024. Net cash used in financing activities during the first three months of fiscal 2025 consisted of $5.0 million to purchase 430,284 shares of common stock on
the open market, and cash dividend payments of $4.7 million; these uses were partially offset by $2.0 million in proceeds received from ESPP share purchases. Net
cash used in financing activities during the first three months of fiscal 2024 consisted of cash dividend payments of $4.7 million and was partially offset by $3.1
million in proceeds received from ESPP share purchases and employee stock option exercises.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Interest Rate Risk. We are primarily exposed to market risks from fluctuations in interest rates and the effects of those fluctuations on the market values
of our cash and cash equivalents and our borrowings under the Credit Facility that bear interest at a variable market rate.

As of August 24, 2024, we had approximately $89.6 million of cash and cash equivalents. The earnings on cash and cash equivalents are subject to
changes in interest rates; however, assuming a constant balance available for investment, a 10% decline in interest rates would reduce our interest income but
would not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

As of August 24, 2024, we had no outstanding debt under our Credit Facility. We are exposed to interest rate risk related to fluctuations in the term SOFR
rate and, to a lesser extent, the loan prime rate on the Beijing Revolver. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” above and Note 8 — Long-Term Debt in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further discussion about the interest rate on our Credit
Facility and the Beijing Revolver. To the extent that there is a significant increase in the level of borrowings, a sharp rise in interest rate could have a material
impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk. For the three months ended August 24, 2024, approximately 18.3% of our revenues were generated outside of
the U.S. As a result, our operating results are subject to fluctuations in the exchange rates of foreign currencies in relation to the U.S. dollar. Revenues and
expenses denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at the monthly average exchange rates prevailing during the period. Thus, as the value
of the U.S. dollar fluctuates relative to the currencies in our non-U.S.-based operations, our reported results may vary.

Assets and liabilities of our non-U.S.-based operations are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rate effective at the end of each monthly reporting
period. Approximately 49.9% of our balances of cash and cash equivalents as of August 24, 2024 were denominated in U.S. dollars. The remaining amount of
approximately 50.1% was comprised primarily of cash balances translated from Euros, British Pound Sterling, Japanese Yen, Canadian Dollar, Chinese Yuan,
Indian Rupee, and Mexican Pesos. This compares to approximately 59.2% of our cash and cash equivalents balances as of May 25, 2024 that were denominated in
U.S. dollars and approximately 40.8% that were comprised primarily of cash balances translated from Euros, Japanese Yen, Mexican Pesos, Chinese Yuan,
Canadian Dollar, Indian Rupee and British Pound Sterling. The difference resulting from the translation in each period of assets and liabilities of our non-U.S.-
based operations is recorded as a component of stockholders’ equity in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss.

Although we monitor our exposure to foreign currency fluctuations, we do not currently use financial hedges to mitigate risks associated with foreign

currency fluctuations including in a limited number of circumstances when we may be asked to transact with our client in one currency but are obligated to pay our
consultants in another currency. Our foreign entities typically transact with clients and consultants in their local currencies and generate enough operating cash
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flows to fund their own operations. We believe our economic exposure to exchange rate fluctuations has not been material. However, we cannot provide assurance
that exchange rate fluctuations will not adversely affect our financial results in the future.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the
Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of August 24, 2024. Based
on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as a result of a material weakness in internal control over financial
reporting that is described below, our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of August 24, 2024.

Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

As discussed above, during the first quarter of fiscal 2025, the Company reorganized its business segments and, as a result, the Company was required to
perform an interim goodwill impairment analysis on the new reporting units as of May 26, 2024. During completion of such goodwill impairment analysis, the
management review control that related to certain inputs into the valuation analysis did not operate effectively, resulting in a change to the goodwill impairment
amount recorded for the Europe and Asia Pacific segment as of August 24, 2024. The total goodwill impairment recorded is $3.9 million. This misstatement was
identified and corrected prior to release of the Company’s Form 10-Q for the first quarter of fiscal 2025.

Remediation of Material Weakness

Management is implementing remediation steps to address the material weakness described above and to improve our internal control over financial
reporting. While we have processes to review inputs into valuation analyses, we are improving our policies and procedures to document more robust supporting
evidence related to the work performed by any valuation specialists used in preparing the Company’s goodwill impairment analysis.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

Other than the remediation measures described above, there were no changes to our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f)
or 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that occurred during the fiscal quarter ended August 24, 2024 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

There have been no material changes in our risk factors from those disclosed in Part 1, Item 1A of our Fiscal Year 2024 Form 10-K, which was filed with
the SEC on July 22, 2024 See “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of Part I of such Fiscal Year 2024 Form 10-K for a complete description of the material risks we face.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS.

The following table provides information regarding purchases by us of our common stock for the three months ended August 24, 2024. All shares were
repurchased pursuant to the July 2015 program as described in footnote (1) below.

Total Number of
Average

Shares Approximate Dollar

Total Price Purchased as Value of Shares

Number Paid Part of Publicly that May Yet be

of Shares per Announced Plans or Purchased Under

Period Purchased Share Programs (1) the Plans or Programs

May 26, 2024 — June 22, 2024 -8 - -3 42,246,173
June 23, 2024 — July 20, 2024 -8 - -8 42,246,173
July 21, 2024 — August 24, 2024 430,284 § 11.62 430,284 § 37,246,183
Total May 26, 2024 — August 24, 2024 430,284 § 11.62 430,284 § 37,246,183

(1) In July 2015, our board of directors approved a stock repurchase program (the “July 2015 program”), authorizing the purchase, at the discretion of our senior
executives, of our common stock for an aggregate dollar limit not to exceed $150 million. Subject to the aggregate dollar limit, the currently authorized stock
repurchase program does not have an expiration date. Repurchases under the program may take place in the open market or in privately negotiated
transactions and may be made pursuant to a Rule 10b5-1 plan.

ITEM S. OTHER INFORMATION.
Insider Trading Arrangements

None.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS.

The following exhibits are filed with, or incorporated by reference in, this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Exhibit Number Description of Document

3.1

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Resources Connection, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 30, 2004).

3.2 filed on August 31, 2015).
31.1%* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2% Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
30 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
) 2002.
30 9%k Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
’ 2002.
The following unaudited interim consolidated financial statements from the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
101* ended August 24, 2024, formatted in Inline XBRL: (i) Consolidated Statements of Operations, (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iii)
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity, (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows, and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
104* Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted in Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

* Filed herewith.
*k Furnished herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

RESOURCES CONNECTION, INC.

Date: October 3, 2024 /s/ KATE W. DUCHENE

Kate W. Duchene

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer and Duly Authorized Officer)

Date: October 3, 2024 /s/ JENNIFER RYU

Jennifer Ryu

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Kate W. Duchene, certify that:
1. I'have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Resources Connection, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: October 3, 2024

/s/ KATE W. DUCHENE
Kate W. Duchene
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

1, Jennifer Ryu, certify that:
1. I'have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Resources Connection, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: October 3, 2024

/s/ JENNIFER RYU
Jennifer Ryu
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended August 24, 2024 of Resources Connection, Inc. (the “Form 10-Q”), I,
Kate W. Duchene, President and Chief Executive Officer of Resources Connection, Inc., certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
1. The Form 10-Q fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
Resources Connection, Inc.

Date: October 3, 2024

/s/ KATE W. DUCHENE
Kate W. Duchene
President and Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. It is not being filed for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company, whether
made before or after the date hereof, regardless of any general incorporation language in such filing.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended August 24, 2024 of Resources Connection, Inc. (the “Form 10-Q”), I,
Jennifer Ryu, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Resources Connection, Inc., certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
1. The Form 10-Q fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
Resources Connection, Inc.

Date: October 3, 2024

/s/ JENNIFER RYU
Jennifer Ryu
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. It is not being filed for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company, whether
made before or after the date hereof, regardless of any general incorporation language in such filing.



